
 
AMENDED AGENDA 4-15-2014 

 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

  TUESDAY, APRIL 15, 2014  
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

  
    CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Approval of the minutes from the April 1, 2014 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting  

 
2. RES. NO. R-50-14 

A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Kirt Huemmer as a City Employee 
 

3. RES. NO. R-51-14 
A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Larry Picklesimer as a City Employee 
 

4. RES. NO. R-52-14 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Board of Zoning Appeals 

 
5. RES. NO. R-53-14 

A Resolution appointing a member to the Board of Zoning Appeals 
 

6. RES. NO. R-54-14 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Income Tax Board of Review 

 
7. RES. NO. R-55-14 

A Resolution appointing a member to the Downtown District Design Review Board 
 

8. RES. NO.R-56-14 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Park Board 

 
9. RES. NO. R-57-14 

A Resolution appointing a member to the Park Board 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

10. RES. NO. R-58-14 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement to permit the usage of a portion 
of public parks and city owned property for Adventures on the Great Miami to operate a non-motorized 
watercraft rental business 
 
 



 2

 
11. RES. NO. R-59-14 

A Resolution authorizing an application to the Ohio Department of Transportation for funding to make 
improvements to Hartzell Field at the Piqua Municipal Airport 
 

12. RES. NO. R-60-14  Amended 4-15-14 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into contract with CDM-Smith for amendment No: 1 to 
the engineering services for a Wastewater Treatment Plant preliminary engineering report 

 
13. RES. NO. R-61-14 

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a lease agreement to permit the usage of a 
portion of Lock Nine Park and Linear Park to the Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua 

 
14. RES. NO. R-62-14 

A Resolution of Intent to vacate Public Right-of-Way 
 

15. RES. NO. R-63-14 
A Resolution of Intent to vacate Public-Right-of-Way 

 
16. RES. NO. R-64-14 

A Resolution urging Ohio Voters to support State Issue 1, renewal of the State Capital Improvements 
Program, on the May 6, 2014 ballot 

 
17. RES. NO. R-65-14 

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Access Engineering Solutions, 
Inc., for professional engineering services as related to the Ridge Street, Garbry Road and Hemm 
Road water main improvements 

 
18. RES. NO. R-66-14 

A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Valley Ford Truck, Inc., for the purchase of four trucks for 
the Public Works Department 
 
MONTHLY REPORTS 
Monthly Reports for February 2014 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENT  
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. 

       
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 
      PRESENTATION   Cindy Bach – Solid Waste Coordinator for Miami County 
   
      Ms. Bach presented an update on House Bill 592 stating there will be changes made but she is  
      not sure what the changes are going to be at this time.  Ms. Back passed out information regarding  
      several  upcoming events in the future within Miami County.  Several include: Composting  
      materials will now be accepted, a Prescription Pill Drug Take Back Program, and a Shred Fest.   
      Police Chief Jamison explained how RX drugs are accepted within the City of Piqua. 
 
      EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
       Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry to move into Executive  
       Session at 7:40 P.M.to consider the purchase or sale of property for public purposes.  Roll call,  
       Aye:  Martin, Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
       Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from Executive  
       Session at 7:51 P.M. and move into the Regular City Commission Meeting. Voice vote, Aye:  
       Terry, Martin, Wilson, Vogt, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
      Consent Agenda 
      
      Approval of Minutes 
 
      Approval of the minutes from the February 4, 2014, and the March 18, 2014 Regular Piqua City  
      Commission Meetings, and the minutes from the March 13, 2014 Piqua City Commission Work 
      Session. 
  
      Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to approve the Consent 
      Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Wilson. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
      unanimously.  
 
       OLD BUSINESS 
 
       ORD. NO. 2-14 (3rd Reading)  
       An Ordinance amending Section 77.01 – Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule IV of the Piqua  
       Code, relating to four-way stop intersections pertaining to the Park Avenue/Lambert Drive 
       intersection 
     
       City Engineer, Amy Havenar stated a study was completed warranting a multi-way stop at this  
       intersection based on the Ohio Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (OMUTCD).  The  
      Transportation Committee unanimously recommended that this intersection be made a four –way 
       Stop and forwarded the request to the City Commission. 
 
      Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 2-14 be  
      adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Terry, Wilson, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried 
      unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 2-14 adopted. 
  



 2

     NEW BUSINESS 
 
     RES. NO. R-47-14 
     A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to John Deere Company for the purchase of lawn  
     mowers for the Public Works Department-Street and Parks 
    
     Assistant Street Superintendent Brian Brookhart provided a brief overview on the eight new 
     mowers including the fuel type, size, and the warranties for the various mowers.  Mr. Brookhart  
     did a very extensive research on the various mowers and explained the reason for choosing 
     these particular mowers.  Mr. Brookhart stated they would be using the State Bid Contract to  
     purchase these mowers, and further explained what the plans are for the current mowers.   
 
     Several question were raised concerning the mulching capability, and the difference between the  
     60 inch and the 72 inch mowing deck, and if there is any trade in value on the old mowers.  Mr. 
     Brookhart provided the information. 
 
     Public Comment 
 
     No one came forward to speak for or against Res. No. R-47-14. 
 
     Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-47-14  
     be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Terry, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
     unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution R-47-14 adopted. 
 
    RES. NO. R- 48-14 
    A Resolution approving the purchase of Parcel N44-000560 
 
    City Manager Huff stated the City has been in the pre-planning stages creating the development of  
    the Riverfront Area.  Parcel N44-000560 - 117 E. Water Street is a critical piece of the proposed  
    development, and the City would like to purchase the parcel for an amount not to exceed  
    $48,000. 
 
    Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-48-14. 
 

    Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-48-14 be 
    adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Terry, Wilson, Fess, and Vogt.  Nay: None. Motion carried  
    unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-49-14 adopted. 

 
RES. NO. R-49-14 
A Resolution approving the purchase of Parcel N44-017270 
 

    City Manager Huff stated this is the second property the City has been working with in the pre- 
    planning stages creating the development of the Riverfront Area. Parcel N44-017270 - 111 S. Main  
    Street is also a critical piece of the proposed development, and the City would like to purchase the  
    parcel for an amount not to exceed $50,000. 
 
    The purchase of these two properties was discussed previously at an Executive Session stated  
    Commissioner Vogt. 
 
    Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-49-14. 
 

    Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-49-14 be 
    adopted.  Roll call, Aye:  Terry, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried  
    unanimously. Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-49-14 adopted. 

 



 3

         
     PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
     Brad Boehringer, Mound Street, came forward and welcomed Clerk of Commission Becky Cool  
     back after her extended illness, stating he was glad to have her back. 
 
     Mr. Boehringer stated Bill Lutz, Development Program Director, and eleven of the Citizens 
     Government Academy graduates will be touring the State House, and sit in on a Ohio Senate  
     Session with Senator Beagle on Tuesday April 8, 2014. 
 
      Jeannine Pratt, candidate for Miami County Common Pleas Court Judge came forward and  
      introduced herself to the Commission, and asked Piqua residents for their vote in the May Primary. 
      

City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Huff stated he provided a copy to the Commissioners of the letter he sent to the FAA 
regarding the inclusion of the Piqua Municipal Airport into the National Plan of Integrated Airport 
Systems (NPIAS).  This is important as it allows the City to have access to federal funding for 
capital improvements and maintenance for the Municipal Airport.  City Manager Huff further stated 
the letter is being supported by Speaker John Boehner’s Office and various Companies, and 
explained the reason for the letter.  The City of Piqua is the headquarters of Hartzell Propeller who 
is the international leader in advanced propeller design and manufacturing technology. Seventy-five 
percent of the aircraft in the world utilize propellers from Hartzell Propeller, and Hartzell engineers 
are working to convert engines from AV gas to Jet A fuel for environmental concerns and worldwide 
availability, stated City Manager Huff. 
 
Mayor Fess stated City Manager Huff wrote a great letter, further stating she counted sixty-eight 
different companies who fly into the Piqua Municipal Airport for various reasons and service. 
 
City Manager Huff announced MainStreet Piqua Beautification Committee is accepting donations 
for the downtown flower planters, and if anyone would like to donate they can contact Lorna 
Swisher at MainStreet Piqua.  Commissioner Wilson noted that the donations are tax deductible. 

 
    Commissioners Comments 
 
     Commissioner Wilson stated he would like to welcome Becky Cool, Commission Clerk back and  
     asked her not to leave again! 
 
     Commissioner Terry also welcomed Becky Cool back stating she missed her! 
 
    Commissioner Martin also welcomed Becky Cool back and to think spring! 
 
    Commissioner Vogt also welcomed Becky Cool back, stating he did not have anyone to bug!!! 
 
    Commissioner Vogt announced the Piqua Municipal Golf Course is open and offering memberships  
    with no increase in fees this year.  This is the finest golf course in the State, stated Commissioner  
    Vogt. 
 
    Mayor Fess made it unanimous by welcoming Becky Cool back after being out 6 weeks, further  
    stating she has never been out that long before.  Glad to have her back. 
 
    Mayor Fess also thanked Kim Hebb, Law Director’s Executive Assistant for attending the  
    Commission Meetings during Becky’s absence, and for doing a great job for the Commission! 
     
 
   
 
 



 4

 
 
     Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the   
     Regular Commission Meeting at 8:20 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Vogt, and 
     Fess.  Nay, None. 

 
            
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   

     PASSED: ______________________   
 

     ATTEST: _______________________ 
               REBECCA J. COOL 
          CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO.  R-50-14 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                            PUBLIC SERVICE OF KIRT HUEMMER 
       AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Kirt Huemmer has retired as Golf Working Supervisor with the Golf 
Course; and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows 27 years of faithful and dedicated service to the 
City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of  
Kirt Huemmer as Golf Working Supervisor with the Golf Course, this Commission tenders 
its unanimous and respectful tribute by this Resolution, which shall be a matter of public 
and permanent record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                  CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO.  R-51-14 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                      PUBLIC SERVICE OF LARRY PICKLESIMER 
       AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Larry Picklesimer has retired as Firefighter/Paramedic with the Fire 
Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows over 20 years of faithful and dedicated service 
to the City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of  
Larry Picklesimer as Firefighter/Paramedic with the Fire Department, this Commission 
tenders its unanimous and respectful tribute by this Resolution, which shall be a matter of 
public and permanent record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                  CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-52-14 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                          TO THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Earl Slater is hereby appointed as a member of the Board of 
Zoning Appeals for a term to expire on March 1, 2019 or until his successor is 
confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-53-14 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                          TO THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Dustin Davis is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term of 
Daniel Patrizio as a member of the Board of Zoning Appeals for a term to expire on 
March 1, 2018 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-54-14 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                       TO THE INCOME TAX BOARD OF REVIEW 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Earl Slater is hereby appointed as a member of the Income 
Tax Board of Review for a term to expire on March 1, 2019 or until his successor is 
confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-54-14 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                       TO THE INCOME TAX BOARD OF REVIEW 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Earl Slater is hereby appointed as a member of the Income 
Tax Board of Review for a term to expire on March 1, 2019 or until his successor is 
confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-56-14 
 

                     A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                                    TO THE PARK BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Steve Frazier is hereby appointed as a member of the Park 
Board for a term to expire on March 1, 2019 or until his successor is confirmed and 
qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-57-14 
 

                     A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                                    TO THE PARK BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Kevin Pryfogle is hereby appointed as a member of the Park 
Board for a term to expire on March 1, 2019 or until his successor is confirmed and 
qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                       RESOLUTION NO.  R-58-14 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT TO PERMIT THE USAGE OF A PORTION OF PUBLIC PARKS AND 
CITY OWNED PROPERTY FOR ADVENTURES ON THE GREAT MIAMI TO 
OPERATE A NON-MOTORIZED WATERCRAFT RENTAL BUSINESS 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to permit the 
Adventures on the Great Miami to use a portion of certain public parks and city 
owned property to operate a non-motorized watercraft rental business in accordance 
with the terms of the attached License Agreement.  The rental fee for this lease shall 
be $1.00 and other valuable consideration. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

 

Commission Agenda      Item #10  
Staff Report 

MEETING DATE April 15, 2014 

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 
AN AGREEMENT TO PERMIT THE USAGE OF A PORTION OF PUBLIC 
PARKS AND CITY OWNED PROPERTY FOR ADVENTURES ON THE 
GREAT MIAMI TO OPERATE A NON-MOTORIZED WATERCRAFT 
RENTAL BUSINESS 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

City Planner  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

The applicant desires to rent canoes and kayaks available for public use on the 
Great Miami River and desires to utilize city property for put-in/take-out 
locations and to conduct the rental transactions.  The applicant would execute a 
license agreement with the City to define the terms under which this activity 
would be permitted and the City would execute a Permit with the Miami 
Conservancy District that will allow the City’s licensee to use adjacent Miami 
Conservancy District property as an extension to the City property being 
utilized.    

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  0 

Source of Funds: N/A 

Narrative:  Approving the resolution will forward the request to the 
Planning Commission for study and recommendation. 

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the resolution to authorize the execution of the license agreement 
and securement of the permit. 

2. Defeat the resolution and deny the license agreement and the securement of 
the permit. 

PROJECT TIMELINE April 10, 2014 – City Commission – Work Session  



April 15, 2014 – City Commission – Action on Resolution  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the proposed resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS License Agreement 

 



 

 
 

ADVENTURES ON THE GREAT MIAMI  
NON-MOTORIZED WATERCRAFT RENTAL BUSINESS  

  

LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ______ day of ______, 2014 by and between the CITY OF 
PIQUA, OHIO, a municipal corporation (“City”) and ADENTURES ON THE GREAT MIAMI (“Licensee”):  
 
 WHEREAS, City has an initiative to create economic development opportunities including developing its 
riverfront; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Natural Resources has designated the Great Miami River as a Water 
Trail, a network of publicly accessible facilities that provide  opportunities to fish; launch canoes and kayaks, and 
other craft; and explore the natural and cultural heritage of the river; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City also promotes quality of life through use of its recreational trails and parks, and 
bodies of water, as a means of experiencing nature and enhancing physical and emotional health and well-being; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the accessibility and availability to kayaks and canoes to the Great Miami River is in 
accordance with the City’s initiatives and benefits the Piqua community and surrounding area.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. Premises.  City does hereby agree to permit Licensee to utilize certain space within public parks 
and or City owned properties, as more particularly shown on the diagram attached hereto as Exhibit A (the 
“Premises”), for put-in/take-out, rental, and storage of watercraft, and subject to section 7 below, for access as 
needed by Licensee. In no event shall Licensee use the Premises for the storage of Hazardous Materials as generally 
defined in state and federal environmental laws, or in a manner that will cause the City’s insurance or liability on the 
public parks and or City owned properties to increase. City may at all times continue to use the other portions of the 
public parks and or City owned properties for any purpose the City deems necessary or desirable. 
  
 2. Term.  The initial term of this Agreement shall be one year, but shall automatically renew for 
additional one year terms until terminated by either party. 
  
 3. Fee.  Licensee shall pay to City an annual fee for the use of such space in the amount of One Dollar 
($1.00) per year. 
  
 4. Utilities.  City shall not be responsible for the provision of any utilities services at the Premises to 
be utilized by the Licensee.  If Licensee desires utilities for the Premises, or have climate control, (heat and/or air 
conditioning) at the Premise, it may do so upon receiving written permission from the City and in accordance with 
all applicable standards and regulations and at its sole cost and expense. City shall, in its sole discretion, determine 
what maintenance, infrastructure, or repairs are required for the access of utilities at the Premises and shall have no 
obligation to make any repairs, or construction at the City’s expense. 
  
 5. Taxes.  Licensee shall not be responsible for any real estate taxes, but shall be responsible for any 
taxes on its own property and equipment at the Premises. 
 
 6. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon one (1) month’s written notice. 



 

 
 

Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Licensee shall remove its property and any equipment and 
restore the Premises to substantially the same condition in which the Premises were at the time Licensee occupied 
the Premises. Provided, however, any authorized improvements made by Licensee pursuant to section 7 below shall 
not be removed, and shall become the property of City. 
  
 7. Alterations.  Licensee shall not make alterations, modifications, additions, or improvements to any 
part of the Premises without the prior written consent of the City Manager.  Licensee acknowledges any requirement 
for public restrooms to support the Licensee use is the sole responsibility of the Licensee and the City is under no 
obligation to provide them. Licensee may provide restrooms serviceable at its sole cost and expense. 
 
 8. Insurance.  Licensee shall insure its own personal property and any structure that is erected. 
Further, Licensee shall keep and maintain liability insurance and shall provide a copy thereof to City. Said 
insurance shall be in an amount acceptable to City and insure against claims for injury, property damage or other 
loss arising from or in connection with Licensee’s occupancy of the Premises. Such insurance must protect the 
interest of City by providing that City is a named insured for primary and non-contributing coverage, and the 
policy must require fifteen (15) days written notice to City prior to cancellation. Further, Licensee shall 
indemnify City and hold City harmless against any and all claims for damages, costs and expenses to persons or 
property that may arise out of, or be occasioned by the use and occupancy of the Premises by Licensee or from 
any act or omission of any representative, agent, customer, and/or employee of Licensee.  
 
 9. Assignment/Subleasing.  Licensee may not assign or transfer this Agreement or any portion 
thereof, or sublet any portion of the Premises. 
 
 10. Use. It is agreed that Licensee, its agents, customers, guests, and invitees, shall have the right to 
use the Premises for purposes necessary to the operations of the Licensee, within the area limits and on the dates 
and within the hours specifically authorized by the City Manager and as permitted by City Ordinance, and 
provided all use of the Premises is in accordance with all applicable City, State, and Federal laws. City shall not 
be responsible for any maintenance or security of the Premises solely for the benefit of or necessary to the 
operations of the Licensee.  
 
 11. Miscellaneous.  One or more waivers of any covenant or condition by the City shall not be 
construed as a waiver of a further breach of the same covenant or condition. The captions are provided for the 
convenience of the parties and are not to be used in the construction of any paragraph.  The covenants, conditions, 
obligations and agreements made and entered into by the parties hereto are binding upon the heirs, successors, and 
representatives and assigns of the respective parties hereto.  There are no other written or oral understandings 
regarding the premises. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 
an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 
 
CITY      LICENSEE 
 
City of Piqua     Adventures on the Great Miami 
 
 
_______________________________  __________________________________ 
Gary A. Huff, City Manager   Chris Jackson, Owner 
 



Exhibit ‘A’ 

 

 
 

 

 

PREMISES 
 
Location Use 
Swift Run Lake, 
Goodrich Giles 
Park 

Put-in/take-out  

Roadside, Upper 
Fountain Park, 
Lock Nine Park 

Put-in/take-out, 
rental operations, 
and watercraft, 
trailer, and vehicle 
storage during 
permitted hours 

Public Works 
Facility 

Watercraft, trailer, 
and vehicle storage 

  

DATES AND HOURS 
 
Location Dates/Hours 
Swift Run Lake, 
Roadside Park, 
Goodrich Giles 
Park, Upper 
Fountain Park, 
Lock Nine Park 

January 1 to 
December 31, Dawn 
to Dusk, Except 
when any 
conditions make 
watercraft 
operations or the 
use unsafe, or when 
temporary 
suspension of the 
use is ordered by 
the City Manager 

Public Works 
Facility 

January 1 to 
December 31, 
Unrestricted hours, 
Provided regular 
and routine use 
operations continue 
at other Premises 
locations 



RESOLUTION NO.  R-59-14 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION 
TO THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FOR FUNDING TO MAKE IMPROVEMENTS TO 
HARTZELL FIELD AT THE PIQUA MUNICIPAL 
AIRPORT 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio, through the Ohio Department of 
Transportation, administers financial assistance programs for small public 
airports; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua desires financial assistance for such a 
project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City 
of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, a majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that: 

SEC. 1: The City of Piqua approves filing an application for 
assistance from the Ohio Department of Transportation. 

SEC. 2: The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute and file an application through the Ohio Department of Transportation 
and to provide all information and documentation required to become eligible for 
possible funding assistance. 

SEC. 3: If awarded the grant funding, the City of Piqua agrees to 
obligate the funds required to satisfactorily complete the proposed project under 
the terms and conditions of the Ohio Department of Transportation. 

SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 

          
                 ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 

 
ATTEST: ______________________________ 
  REBECCA J. COOL 
  CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item #11 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
April 15, 2014 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution authorizing an application to the Ohio Department of 
Transportation for funding to make improvements to Hartzell Field at the Piqua 
Municipal Airport 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer                         
Department:  Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

Each year, the Ohio Department of Transportation requests proposals for their 
Ohio Airport Grant Program.  This program, funded at $1 million each year, 
provides Ohio’s small airports funding for obstruction removal and runway 
improvements.  The City is submitting funding for crack sealing and repairs and 
new pavement markings.       

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $18,000 

Expenditure $:  $8,545 (10% local match) 

Source of Funds: 101-113-864-7553 (Street Dept.) 

Narrative  Each year, the City of Piqua budgets $18,000 for 
improvements at the Piqua Municipal Airport.  Through the 
Ohio Airport Grant Program, the City of Piqua will request 
$76,905, which is 90% of the total project cost.  They City 
must provide 10% of the project cost, which is $8,545.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 

1. Approve the resolution and submit an application to the Ohio Department 
of Transportation for the airport funding.    

2. Do not approve the resolution and provide guidance as to additional 
funding sources. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE The anticipated schedule is for the work to being in March of 2015.     

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the resolution and submit application to the Ohio Department of 
Transportation. 

ATTACHMENTS  None 

 



AMENDED 4-15-2014 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-60-14 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER 
INTO CONTRACT WITH CDM-SMITH FOR AMENDMENT NO: 1 TO 
THE ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR A WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT  

 
 WHEREAS, On May 21st 2013 Piqua City Commission approved A 
contract with CDM-Smith to Start Engineering by performing a Preliminary 
Engineering Report for the Wastewater Treatment Plant’s removal of the SSO 
; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) will fully 
identify the improvements that need to be made as recommended in the 
Master Plan, and will provide more details and equipment selections to 
implement the needed upgrades and their associated cost; and 
 

WHEREAS, CDM has prepared the Master Plan and has finished the 
High Rate Treatment Study, which has already been approved by the OEPA, 
along with, provides the procedure that the City must follow to meet all of the 
EPA requirements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the PER(Report) needs to be amended to reflect changes 
to the Master Plan along with cost to perform these changes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, due to the approved timeline from the OEPA, a delay 
caused by bidding the professional services would be detrimental to the 
Master Plan mandates, and Piqua Municipal Code §34.19 allows for the 
bidding process to be waived due to the nature of the agreement being for 
professional services; and   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the 
City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract with 
CDM-Smith to perform Professional Engineering Services for the Preliminary 
Engineering Report (PER) Amendment NO: 1;  

 
SEC. 2: The cost involved is not to exceed $290,000 and will be 

funded by Wastewater Plant Budget for 2014 & 15/DEFA Design loan. 
 
 SEC. 3: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate 



account of the City treasury in payment according to contract terms, not 
exceeding a total of $290,000; 
 
 SEC. 4: In accordance with section 34.19 of the Piqua Municipal Code, 
the professional services does not need to be bid finding that the City 
Manager has determined that bidding such services would cause a delay 
detrimental to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion 
Project as already approved by the OEPA and in accordance with the OEPA 
mandates regarding treatment of flows and is a professional service under 
Piqua Municipal Code §34.19. 
 
 SEC. 5: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
           
      __________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 

































































                                       RESOLUTION NO.  R-61-14 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT TO PERMIT THE USAGE 
OF A PORTION OF LOCK NINE PARK AND LINEAR PARK TO 

THE PIQUA ARTS COUNCIL AND MAINSTREET PIQUA 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to permit the Piqua 
Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua on June 14, 2014, June 28, 2014, and July 28, 
2014 to use Lock Nine Park and Linear Park (including a portion of E. Water Street 
from Spring Street to Harrison Street) as the location of the Rock Piqua! Riverfront 
Concert Series, upon the condition that the Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua 
obtains liability insurance satisfactory to the City Manager at a minimum coverage of 
$1,000,000 and complies with the terms of the attached Lease Agreement.  The 
rental fee for this lease shall be $1.00 and other valuable consideration. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



ROCK PIQUA! RIVERFRONT CONCERT SERIES  

LEASE AGREEMENT 

Page 1 
 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this   day of      ___ 2014, 
by and between the City of Piqua (CITY) and the Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua 
(ASSOCIATION) as follows: 
 
Section 1:  For one dollar and other valuable consideration, the City leases to the Association 
on the days of June 14, 2014, June 28, 2014, and July 26, 2014 the Lock Nine Park and 
portions of the Linear Park public park facilities, and a portion of the Water Street public right 
of way from Spring Street to Harrison Street, as more specifically shown on the attached 
Exhibit ‘A’. 
 
Section 2:  The Association shall occupy and use the leased premises solely for the purposes 
of the Rock Piqua! Riverfront Concert Series and related activities, as more specifically 
shown on the attached Exhibit ‘B’. 
 
Section 3:  The Association shall obtain liability insurance satisfactory to the City Manager at 
a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 per event or $3,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or 
property damage or for liability for acts of the Association or its agents, employees, licensees, 
or invitees, including operations, products and contemplated operations.  Proof of coverage 
shall be provided to the City of Piqua.   

 
The association will include the following as additional insureds:  The City of Piqua, Ohio, its 
elected and appointed officials, all employees, agents, volunteers, all boards, commissions 
and/or authorities and board members including employees, agents and volunteers thereof.  
Coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds and not contributing with any other 
insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds whether other available 
coverage be primary, contributing, or excess. 
 
The City of Piqua shall be issued a certificate of insurance in the amount not less than stated 
above.  The certificate of insurance shall specify that the City of Piqua, its elected of and 
appointed officials, all employees, agents, volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and board members including employees, agents and volunteers thereof are added 
by endorsement as additional insureds. 
 
All performers and vendors at the celebration shall provide proof of liability coverage in the 
same amount and include the City of Piqua as an additional insured.  The Association shall 
not permit any performer or vendor without the proper liability insurance coverage. 
 
Section 4:  The Association shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City of Piqua, 
Ohio, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers against any and all liability, loss, costs, 
damages, expenses, claims or actions, including attorney’s fees which the City of Piqua, Ohio, 
its officers, employees, agents and volunteers may hereafter sustain, incur or be required to 
pay, arising out of or by any act or omission of the Association, the City of Piqua, Ohio, their 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers, in the execution, performance or failure to 
adequately perform Association’s or City of Piqua’s obligations pursuant to this contract. 



ROCK PIQUA! RIVERFRONT CONCERT SERIES  

LEASE AGREEMENT 

Page 2 
 

Section 5:  The Association, its assigns, heirs, successors, employees and any and all 
subcontractors are independent contractors and are not agents and/or employees of the City of 
Piqua.   
 
Section 6:  This agreement shall not be assignable.  
 
Section 7:  The Association and all performers and vendors shall comply with all inspections 
and obtain any permits required prior to operation, including any full time or on-site security, 
at the Association’s expense. 
 
Section 8:  No Association contract with any performer or vendor shall place any liability 
upon the City. 
 
Section 9:  The Association shall be responsible for basic clean-up of the facilities after the 
conclusion of each Rock Piqua! Riverfront Concert Series event. 
 
Executed as of the above-referenced date by: 
 
 
 
CITY OF PIQUA  MAINSTREET PIQUA 

   

Gary A. Huff, City Manager  Lorna Swisher, Executive Director 

  PIQUA ARTS COUNCIL 

   

  Jordan Knepper, Executive Director 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

 

 

 



ROCK PIQUA! Riverfront Concert Series 
 

Page 1 
 

EXHIBIT B

A Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua Program 

Vision  

A series of summer music events that…  

• Attracts people to the riverfront area to raise the profile of the river corridor and the recreational trail 
system. 

• Includes performers who can appeal to a wide age group and attract an audience from within and 
beyond the local community; e.g., local up and coming bands/performers from throughout the region. 

• Incorporates beer and wines sales and specialty food vendor items. 
• Raises funds to support the Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua organizations. 

 

Program Concept  

Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua will collaborate with local supporters to organize and provide a high 
quality outdoor summer music series that includes food and drink offerings.  The series of events will take 
place in an around the Lock Nine Park area near the Great Miami River for the purpose of highlighting the 
recreation opportunities that exist on and along the river corridor.    

The Rock Piqua! Riverfront Concert Series Planning Committee will be responsible for the general coordination 
of the event and solicitation of proposals and sponsorships and the committee will include representation 
from Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua and the community at large.  For the purpose of facilitating the 
event Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua will serve as the contracting and fiduciary agencies and more or 
less share equal responsibility and or recognition and or financial gain occurring as a result of the planning, 
promotion, production, and execution of the music series of events.  The specific task and roles to be filled by 
each organization will be as determined by the Planning Committee and agreed to as reasonable and 
appropriate by the Executive Director of each agency.   

It is envisioned the program scope and coordination efforts will work as follows: 

Location 

The location of the event will be at the bend in the Great Miami River near where the river intersects with 
the multi-use recreational trail and in close proximity to the downtown area (the Lock Nine Park and 
surrounding area). 

Dates/Times 

A series of music events will be held on multiple dates throughout the summer.  The event will take place 
on Saturday and the music performance will begin at approximately 7:00 P.M. and end at approximately 
11:00 P.M.  In general the dates will begin in June and run through early August and attempt to avoid 
conflicts with other community events or other major attractions taking place within the immediate 
region.  The determination of whether or not another event or attraction constitutes a conflict to be 
avoided will be at the discretion of the Planning Committee. 



ROCK PIQUA! Riverfront Concert Series 
 

Page 2 
 

EXHIBIT B

 

Performers  

The Planning Committee will identify performers that may be suitable for the scale, location, and budget 
defined for the event and come to a consensus on the appropriateness of a particular act before any talent 
is contracted to perform at any of the music series event dates.   

Food 

The event will be used to showcase signature food items prepared and provided by locally owned and 
operated restaurants.  Restaurateurs with experience pairing food items that pair well with alcoholic 
beverages will be the preferred choice to provide food service at the event.  The goal is to cross promote 
local restaurant establishments that are most likely to appeal to the event audience so that the local 
business may realize financial gain and greater brand awareness as a result of participating in the event.   

Should there be a lack of interest or desirable options available locally, other vendors providing quality 
food items deemed suitable for the event will be considered.  Service clubs, church groups, and other not-
for profit organizations that offer food items as a fundraiser for their organization are not necessarily the 
targeted food vendors for this event.   

The number of food vendors permitted to provide food service and the types of foods to be offered at 
each event will be limited to ensure each participating vendor a greater probability of profitability.  A 
participation fee and contract determined appropriate by the Planning Committee will be required of each 
participating food vendor.  The Planning Committee will identify food vendors that may be suitable for the 
scale, location, and budget defined for the event and come to a consensus on the appropriateness of a 
particular vendor before any entity is contracted to offer food service at the music series event dates. 

Drink 

The event will include soda and water, and beer and wine sales, and the beverage sales will be used to 
provide a source of income to the event.  The Planning Committee will identify the beverage vendor option 
or options best suited for the scale, location, and budget defined for the event and come to a consensus 
on the appropriateness of a particular vendor before any entity is contracted to offer beverage service at 
any of the music series event dates.  

Other 

The event will require a temporary liquor license, security services, stage and equipment rentals, 
advertising, portable restrooms, portable barricades, and other incidental items. 

 



ROCK PIQUA! Riverfront Concert Series 
 

Page 3 
 

EXHIBIT B

Sponsorships 

The goal is to provide the event to the community without requiring an admission fee.  To achieve that 
goal sponsorships and other monetary support may be required.  The Planning Committee will seek 
financial support from the community as deemed necessary and appropriate. 

Roles and Responsibilities  

It is understood that for an event of this scale to be successful the roles and responsibilities of all involved in 
executing the event must be clearly defined and understood.  The following outlines the anticipated duties 
that each of the identified roles is expected to fulfill. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

Authorized Agent – Duties include providing the authoring signature on contracts and other documents to 
be executed and or provided in conjunction with the event.     

Assignment:  Piqua Arts Council 

Food Coordinator - Duties include coordination with food vendors, and oversight of planning and 
execution of food preparation, sales, and clean-up needs, incidental to the event.   

Assignment:  Mainstreet Piqua 

Beverage Coordinator - Duties include coordination with beverage vendors, and oversight of planning and 
execution of beverage preparation, sales, and clean-up needs, incidental to the event.   

Assignment:  Piqua Arts Council 

Entertainment Coordinator - Duties include coordination with performing artist and audio/lighting/stage 
engineers, and oversight of planning and execution of engineer’s audio/lighting/stage set-up, operation, 
and tear-down, and artist’s pre-show, in-show, and post show needs, and any other ancillary 
entertainment activities, incidental to the event.   

Assignment:  Piqua Arts Council 

Facilities Coordinator - Duties include coordination with sanitation, refuse, security, and electric service 
vendors/providers, and oversight of planning and execution of the set-up, operation, and tear-down, and 
security personnel pre-show, in-show, and post show needs, incidental to the event. 

Assignment:  Mainstreet Piqua 

Marketing Coordinator - Duties include coordination of creation and publishing of print and electronic 
promotion and advertising materials, and media communication needs, incidental to the event. 

Assignment:  Piqua Arts Council/Mainstreet Piqua 

Event Volunteers - Volunteers will be assigned to work under the direction of an event coordinator to 
assist with the completion of the task incidental to the coordinator’s responsibilities. 



Assig

 
 
Anticipa

 

gnment:  Mai

ated Schedule

ROCK P

nstreet Piqua

e 

PIQUA! Rive
E

a 

erfront Co
 

Page 4 
 

EXHIBIT B

oncert Seriies 

 



                                  RESOLUTION NO.  R-62- 14 
                              

 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO VACATE 
           PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, this Commission must 
adopt a resolution expressing its intention to vacate platted right-of-way located prior 
to such action being considered; and, 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting the vacation and replatting of a portion of 
platted public right of way known as an alley located east of Nicklin Avenue in the 
vicinity of Ann Street, as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, has been filed with the 
Clerk of Commission; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby intends to vacate and replat a portion 
of platted public right of way known as an alley located east of Nicklin Avenue in the 
vicinity of Ann Street, as shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. The City Manager or 
his duly authorized representative is hereby directed to cause notice of this 
Resolution to be served by certified mail upon all persons whose property abuts said 
tract.  Said notice shall state the time and place at which objections can be heard by 
the Planning Commission. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION



 

 

Commission Agenda      Item #14  
Staff Report 

MEETING DATE April 15, 2014 

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO VACATE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

City Planner  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

The applicant desires to vacate a platted portion of an alley right of way in the 
vicinity of Nicklin Avenue and Ann Street.  The subject right of way is bordered 
by property owned by the applicant on both sides. 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  0 

Source of Funds: N/A 

Narrative:  Approving the resolution will forward the request to the 
Planning Commission for study and recommendation. 

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the resolution to declare intent to vacate and forward the item to the 
Planning Commission for consideration. 

2. Defeat the resolution and deny the request to consider the petition to vacate 
the subject right of way. 

PROJECT TIMELINE April 15, 2014 – City Commission – Declare Intent to Vacate 

May 13, 2014 – Planning Commission – Public Hearing 

May/June 2014 - City Commission – Reading of Ordinance 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the proposed resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS Site Plan 

Application petitioning to vacate the subject right of way 

 





E
xh

ib
it 

‘A
’ 

 

 



E
xh

ib
it 

‘A
’ 

 

 





                                  RESOLUTION NO.  R- 63-14 
                              

 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO VACATE 
           PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, this Commission must 
adopt a resolution expressing its intention to vacate platted right-of-way located prior 
to such action being considered; and, 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting the vacation of a portion of platted public 
right of way known as an alley located between Campbell Street and Downing 
Street, as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, has been filed with the Clerk of 
Commission; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby intends to vacate a portion of platted 
public right of way known as an alley located between Campbell Street and Downing 
Street, as shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. The City Manager or his duly 
authorized representative is hereby directed to cause notice of this Resolution to be 
served by certified mail upon all persons whose property abuts said tract.  Said 
notice shall state the time and place at which objections can be heard by the 
Planning Commission. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION



 

 

Commission Agenda      Item #15  
Staff Report 

MEETING DATE April 15, 2014 

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO VACATE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

City Planner  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

The applicant desires to vacate a platted portion of an alley right of way 
between Campbell Street and Downing Street.  The subject right of way is 
bordered by property owned by the applicant on both sides. 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  0 

Source of Funds: N/A 

Narrative:  Approving the resolution will forward the request to the 
Planning Commission for study and recommendation. 

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the resolution to declare intent to vacate and forward the item to the 
Planning Commission for consideration. 

2. Defeat the resolution and deny the request to consider the petition to vacate 
the subject right of way. 

PROJECT TIMELINE April 15, 2014 – City Commission – Declare Intent to Vacate 

May 13, 2014 – Planning Commission – Public Hearing 

May/June 2014 - City Commission – Reading of Ordinance 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the proposed resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS Application petitioning to vacate the subject right of way 

 





E
xh

ib
it 

‘A
’ 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R–64-14 
 

 
A RESOLUTION URGING OHIO VOTERS TO SUPPORT 
STATE ISSUE 1, RENEWAL OF THE STATE CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM, ON THE MAY 6, 2014 

BALLOT  
 
 
 WHEREAS, Ohio local communities are in continuing need of support for vital road, 
bridge, sewer, water and other infrastructure projects, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, Ohio has in place a state program of support for local communities 
which not only helps to fund infrastructure projects, but also creates large numbers of 
construction and allied jobs, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ohio State Capital Improvements Program has successfully provided 
support for more than 11,500 such projects and resulting job creation since its inception in 
1987, and;   
 
 WHEREAS, Issue 1 on the May 6, 2014 statewide ballot provides Ohio voters with 
the opportunity to renew the program by authorizing issuance of $1.875 billion in capital 
improvement bonds, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, no new taxes are required to fund repayment of the bonds;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: This City Commission declares its support for State Issue 1, and urges 
Ohio voters to cast their votes in support of continuing the infrastructure improvement and 
job creation Issue 1 will foster; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 16
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
April 15, 2014 

 
 

REPORT TITLE 
 
 

 
A RESOLUTION URGING OHIO VOTERS TO SUPPORT 
STATE ISSUE 1, RENEWAL OF THE STATE CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM, ON THE MAY 6, 2014 
BALLOT. 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Assistant City Manager & Finance 
Director 
Department:  Finance Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

 
The Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) provides financing for local 
public infrastructure improvements through both the State Capital Improvement 
Program (SCIP) and the Local Transportation Improvement Program (LTIP). 
 
The SCIP has provided much needed support for the completion of badly 
needed road, bridge, sewer and other infrastructure projects in local Ohio 
communities, with no increase in taxes. 
 
Specifically in the City of Piqua, we have benefitted with 25 projects and over 
$9 million in OPWC grants since 1990.  The largest grant received was $2.3 
million for Phases 1-3 reconstruction of County Rd. 25-A.  Other recent 
improvements to note that were paid for by this program are the E. Ash St. and 
Broadway/Riverside reconstruction projects. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Budgeted $:   
Expenditure $:   
Source of Funds:   
 
Narrative:  

The current OPWC grant program has saved the City of 
Piqua over $9 million in the last 24 years.  It’s impossible to 
know the future impact, but we can be sure it would be 
catastrophic to our community and the State of Ohio if Issue 
1 does not pass on May 6, 2014.  The statewide ballot 
provides authorizing issuance of $1.875 billion in capital 
improvement bonds. 
 



 
OPTIONS 

 
 

1. Approve Resolution R-64-14 as presented. 
2. Deny Resolution R-64-14. 
3.  

 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

 
We want to encourage our citizens to vote for Issue 1 on May 6, 2014.  This will 
allow the State to continue running this program for another 10 years. 
 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
 

 
The City of Piqua has greatly benefitted from the OPWC grant program since 
1990.  At this time, our community support is essential to maintaining this 
invaluable program.  We encourage all voters to approve Issue 1 on May 6, 
2014. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

  

 
Exhibit “A” – State of Ohio Issue 1 
 
Exhibit “B” – City of Piqua OPWC Grant Awards 
 

 









RESOLUTION NO. R-65-14 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER 
INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH ACCESS ENGINEERING 
SOLUTIONS, INC., FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 
SERVICES AS RELATED TO THE RIDGE STREET, GARBRY 
ROAD, AND HEMM ROAD WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 WHEREAS, The City of Piqua Underground Utilities Department has 
identified portions of the water distribution system as needing improvement; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Piqua Engineering Department issued a Request For 
Qualifications for professional engineering services related to the design of 
miscellaneous improvements for the calendar year 2014; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Upon careful review of the responses, it has been determined 
that Access Engineering Solutions, Inc., has the desired experience and 
qualifications to perform the professional engineering services related to the design 
of these improvements. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is authorized to enter into contracts with Access 
Engineering Solutions, Inc., to perform Professional Engineering Services for the 
design of the Ridge Street, Garbry Road, and Hemm Road Water Main 
Improvements;  

 
SEC. 2: The cost involved is not to exceed $65,000 and will be funded by 

Water Plant budget in 2014; 
 
 SEC. 3: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is hereby 
authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the 
City treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$65,000; 
 
 SEC. 4: In accordance with section 34.19 of the Piqua Municipal Code, this 
professional service does not need to be bid. 
 
 SEC. 5: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA FESS, MAYOR 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item #17
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE April 15, 2014 
 

REPORT TITLE 
(Should match resolution/ordinance 

title) 

A resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Access 
Engineering Solutions, Inc., for professional engineering services as related to 
the Ridge Street, Garbry Road, and Hemm Road water main improvements. 

 
SUBMITTED BY Name & Title: Todd Brandenburg, Superintendent 

Department:  Underground Utilities 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

The three areas identified by the Underground Utilities Department in need of 
improvement within the City of Piqua Water Distribution System include Ridge 
Street, Garbry Road, and Hemm Road. 

Ridge Street was scheduled for improvement upon discovery that it is currently 
being serviced through a 2” galvanized “water main”. In an effort to update the 
water distribution system to current construction standards, Underground 
Utilities has scheduled these areas to be replaced with a minimum 8” ductile 
iron water main ensuring adequate flow, water quality, and reliability. 

The Garbry Road improvements are necessary to improve flows to the east end 
of the water distribution system and ensure adequate pipe sizing for current and 
future development. This improvement will also create a loop for the recently 
installed US36 water main increasing the quality of water and reliability of 
service to the east side of Piqua. 

The Hemm Road water main improvements are critical to supplying adequate 
flows to the potential elevated water storage site. These improvements will 
include coordination with the Miami County Engineers Office as they are 
scheduled to replace the Hemm Road Bridge this Summer while the City of 
Piqua replaces and increases the size of the water main underneath. 

Although each of these project fee schedules are below the $25,000 resolution 
threshold, the total of the three design projects will exceed $25,000 and require 
a resolution.  

The City of Piqua Engineering Department accepted Requests For 
Qualifications (RFQs) for the calendar year 2014 at the beginning of the year 
for similar type projects. Underground Utilities has based its selection of Access 
Engineering Solutions, Inc., upon the RFQs received by the Engineering 
Department.  



Careful review of the RFQs received by Engineering led Underground Utilities 
to select Access Engineering Solutions, Inc., based upon their experience and 
familiarity of projects with similar scopes and desired results. City Staff and 
representatives from Access Engineering Solutions, Inc., have met on several 
occasions since and developed a proper scope, contract and fee schedule based 
upon the City’s desired outcomes for this project. This contract has been 
reviewed and approved by the Law Director. 

        
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $65,000 

Expenditure $:  $65,000  

Source of Funds: Local (Water Dept. 403 Fund)  
Narrative  Funding for the design of these three projects will be 

through the Water Department budget allocation for the 
“Short Drive – Ron Aire Loop Project” that will be 
tabeled until 2015 as priorities within the distribution 
system have shifted. This budget amount includes a 30% 
contingency due to geotechnical services that may be 
need on Hemm Road and Garbry Road to determine the 
volume and location of limestone formations prior to 
bidding.  

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with Access Engineering 
Solutions, Inc., to provide professional engineering services.   

2. Deny the resolution and continue to operate the water distribution system 
without these necessary improvements for water quality, flow, 
development, and reliability.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE The design portion of this project will commence immediately with bidding and 

construction planned to occur during the second quarter of 2014.           
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Approval of the resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with 
Access Engineering Solutions, Inc., for professional engineering services as related 
to the Ridge Street, Garbry Road, and Hemm Road water main improvements. 

ATTACHMENTS  Exhibit “A” – Access Engineering Solutions, Inc., Ridge Street Waterline 
Contract 

Exhibit “B” – Access Engineering Solutions, Inc., Hemm Road Waterline 
Extension 

Exhibit “C” – Access Engineering Solutions, Inc., Garbry Road Waterline 
Extension  

 



















































RESOLUTION NO. R–66-14 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO 

VALLEY FORD TRUCK, INC., FOR THE PURCHASE OF FOUR 
TRUCKS FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Piqua Public Works Department desires to purchase four new trucks; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua provided for the purchase of four new trucks in the 2014 
budget appropriations; 
 
 WHEREAS, the purchases will be made using State of Ohio index # GDC093E with Valley 
Ford Truck, Inc.’s quotes being shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to Valley Ford Truck, Inc. for the 
purchase of four new trucks according to the quotes received; 
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is hereby authorized to 
draw her warrants from time to time from the Street Fund (Fund 101) in the amount of $83,500 and 
the Parks Fund (Fund 105) in the amount of $60,000 using the appropriate account of the city 
treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $143,500.00; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 18
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
April 15, 2014 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO VALLEY 
FORD TRUCK, INC. FORTHE PURCHASE OF FOUR TRUCKS FOR  
THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Doug Harter, Public Works Director 
Department: Public Works Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

 

 
We plan to purchase one 2014 Ford F-450 4x4 Regular Cab (Flatbed) Truck and 
one 2014 Ford F-350 4x4 Regular Cab Truck for the Street Department.  We 
also plan to purchase two 2014 Ford F-250 4x4 Regular Cab Trucks for the 
Parks Department.  All the detailed specifications can be found in Exhibit “A.” 
 
The trucks will replace three older vehicles and will help with street and parks 
maintenance. We are replacing a 1991 Chevy truck with 140,000 miles, a 1998 
Chevy truck with 120,000 miles and a 1992 Ford truck with 110,000 miles.  The 
new 1 ton truck will be used to move our Bob Cat and other heavy equipment 
around town as needed for various jobs. 
 
The flatbed truck will be used to haul our new asphalt patcher to job sites as 
well as other miscellaneous street maintenance work.  This truck will also be 
utilized in the winter with putting down salt brine applications. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Budgeted $:  $160,000.00 for the 2014 year 
Expenditure $:  $143,500.00 
Source of Funds: 101-113-850-8805 $83,500 

105-015-880-8805 $60,000 
 
Narrative:  

 
The Public Works Department asked for four new trucks 
during the 2014 budget process.  They will all be used for 
street and park maintenance.  
 

 
OPTIONS 

 

1. Approve Resolution R-66-14 as presented. 
2. Approve Resolution R-66-14 with changes. 
3. Deny Resolution R-66-14 and offer staff an alternative. 



 
 PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
Our new trucks would be ordered right away and delivery would be expected 
within 60-90 days.  We would anticipate having the trucks in late summer.   
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
We support the passage of this Resolution. 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS  

 
Exhibit “A” –  Quotes from Valley Ford Truck, Inc. 
 

 










